

VETERANS COMMITTEE













IBEW LOCAL #5 VETERANS GUIDE

IBEW LOCAL UNION #5 VETERANS COMMITTEE

5 Hot Metal Street Pittsburgh, PA 15203 Phone: (412) 432-1400 Fax: (412) 432-1488

Email: veterans@ibew5.org

VETERANS COMMITTEE OFFICERS

Chair Jim Ryan Vice-Chair Ken Nagel

Secretary

Member at Large Member at Large Member at Large Member at Large

Veterans Service Officer

"Our mission is to support veterans and make available, information on the services and programs that benefit veterans during their membership in the IBEW"

If you are a veteran or the loved one of a veteran in crisis who needs immediate support, please contact the Veterans Crisis Line for confidential crisis support:

Phone: Dial 988 then Press 1

Text: 838255

Online Chat: https://www.veteranscrisisline.net

Table of Contents

IBEW Local #5 Support	1
Veteran Support Information	1
PA VetConnect	1
County Director of Veterans Affairs Contact List	1
Pennsylvania Veterans Registry	2
Pennsylvania VA Facilities and Vet Center Locations	2
Veterans Benefits Administration	2
Post 9/11 GI Bill Benefits	2
Veteran Readiness and Employment	3
Veterans Health Administration	3
VA Mental Health Services	3
Vet Centers (Readjustment Counseling)	3
VA National Cemetery Administration	3
2023 Disability Rates	4
Emergency Room Transportation and Visits	5
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) Rights as A	
EMPLOYEE	
1. Seeking civilian employment.	
2. Actively engaged in civilian employment	
3. Preparing for military deployment	
4. Away on military deployment	
5. Returning from military deployment	
YOUR USERRA RIGHTS AS AN EMPLOYER	
DEPLOYMENT CHECKLIST	12
IBEW Local #5 Checklist	12
Legal Matters Checklist	13
Legal Documents Checklist	
Financial Matters Checklist	
Family Care Plan Checklist	15
Local #5 Jurisdiction County Directors of Veterans Affairs Contact Information	16

IBEW Local #5 Support

IBEW Local #5 Union Offices

- Business Manager, President, and Business Representatives	(412) 432-1400
https://ibew5.org	

IBEW Local #5 Benefits Office Contacts

- Medical, Dental	, Vision, Pension	, 401K	(412	432-1130
-------------------	-------------------	--------	------	----------

IBEW Local #5 Apprenticeship Office

- Apprentice or Journeyman courses	(412) 432-1145
https://www.wpaneca.com/local-5-iatc.html	

Veteran Support Information

PA VetConnect

A very valuable website provided by the PA Department of Military and Veterans Affairs to "...determine the needs of veterans and their beneficiaries, find resources that meet those needs, and connect veterans with those resources..."

https://www.dmva.pa.gov/veteransaffairs/VetConnect/Pages/VetConnect.aspx

Some useful links are:

County Director of Veterans Affairs Contact List

County Directors provide information about benefits, services, and resources available to veterans and their families, and assist them with the application process.

https://www.dmva.pa.gov/veteransaffairs/Documents/Outreach-and-Reintegration/countyprint.pdf

Veteran Service Officer (VSO) Contact List

A VSO can help direct you to benefits that you are eligible for and help you find organizations of veteran groups.

https://www.dmva.pa.gov/veteransaffairs/Documents/Veterans%20Service%20Officers/Veteran%20Service%20Officers%20Contact%20Information%20January%202021.pdf

Pennsylvania Veterans Registry

The Department of Military and Veterans Affairs (DMVA) wants to connect with veterans and their families to inform them about the programs and services available thanks to their service. To help make this important connection, the DMVA created the PA Veterans Registry. All veterans are encouraged to sign up for the free, electronic Registry.

https://www.dmva.pa.gov/veteransaffairs/Pages/Outreach-and-Reintegration/PennsylvaniaVeteransRegistry.aspx

Pennsylvania VA Facilities and Vet Center Locations

A list of all the facilities available to veterans in Pennsylvania.

https://www.va.gov/directory/guide/state.asp?dnum=ALL&STATE=PA

Veterans Benefits Administration

This website has a comprehensive list of the multitude of benefits that are available to Veterans.

https://benefits.va.gov/benefits/

Post 9/11 GI Bill Benefits

The Post 9/11 GI Bill provides the following to eligible veterans: tuition and fees, money for housing, and money for books and supplies. This benefit can be a great assistance to apprentices of the JATC.

https://www.va.gov/education/about-gi-bill-benefits/post-9-11/

Veteran Readiness and Employment

If you have a service-connected disability that limits your ability to work or prevents you from working, Veteran Readiness and Employment can help. This program helps you explore employment options and address education or training needs.

https://www.va.gov/careers-employment/vocational-rehabilitation/

Veterans Health Administration

You may be eligible for VA health care benefits if you served in the active military, naval, or air service and didn't receive a dishonorable discharge. Apply even if you currently have insurance. It may help if you do not have insurance in the future.

https://www.va.gov/health/

VA Mental Health Services

Find out how to access VA mental health services for posttraumatic stress disorder (PTSD), psychological effects of military sexual trauma (MST), depression, grief, anxiety, and other needs. You can use some services even if you're not enrolled in VA health care.

https://www.va.gov/health-care/health-needs-conditions/mental-health/

Vet Centers (Readjustment Counseling)

Vet Centers are community-based counseling centers that provide a wide range of social and psychological services, including professional readjustment counseling to eligible Veterans, active duty service members, including National Guard and Reserve components, and their families.

https://www.vetcenter.va.gov/About US.asp

VA National Cemetery Administration

The veteran, their spouse and dependents are eligible for a variety of burial benefits at either a national cemetery or a private one.

https://www.cem.va.gov/cems/nchp/ncalleghenies.asp

2024 Disability Rates

Effective December 1, 2023

<u>Note</u>: If you have a 10% to 20% disability rating, you won't receive a higher rate even if you have a dependent spouse, child, or parent. If you have a 30% to 100% disability rating, you will receive a higher rate if you have a dependent spouse, child, or parent. https://www.va.gov/disability/compensation-rates/veteran-rates/

10% – 20% (Pays only for veteran no dependents)		
Disability Rate	10%	20%
Veteran Alone	\$171.23	\$338.49

30% – 60% Without Children				
Dependent Status	30%	40%	50%	60%
Veteran Alone	\$524.31	\$755.28	\$1,075.16	\$1,361.88
Veteran with Spouse Only	\$586.31	\$838.28	\$1,179.16	\$1,486.88
Veteran with Spouse & One Parent	\$636.31	\$904.28	\$1,262.16	\$1,586.88
Veteran with Spouse and Two Parents	\$686.31	\$970.28	\$1,345.16	\$1,686.88
Veteran with One Parent	\$574.31	\$821.28	\$1,158.16	\$1,461.88
Veteran with Two Parents	\$624.31	\$887.28	\$1,241.16	\$1,561.88
Additional for Aid and Attendance spouse	\$57.00	\$76.00	\$95.00	\$114.00

30% – 60% With Children				
Dependent Status	30%	40%	50%	60%
Veteran with Child Only/Veteran with Spouse and Child	\$565.31	\$810.28	\$1,144.16	\$1,444.88
Veteran with Spouse and Child	\$632.31	\$899.28	\$1,255.16	\$1,577.88
Veteran with Spouse, One Parent and Child	\$682.31	\$965.28	\$1,338.16	\$1,677.88
Veteran with Spouse, Two Parents and Child	\$732.31	\$1,031.28	\$1,421.16	\$1,777.88
Veteran with One Parent and Child	\$615.31	\$876.28	\$1,227.16	\$1,544.88
Veteran with Two Parents and Child	\$665.31	\$942.28	\$1,310.16	\$1,644.88
Add for Each Additional Child Under Age 18	\$31.00	\$41.00	\$51.00	\$62.00
Each Additional Schoolchild Over Age 18	\$100.00	\$133.00	\$167.00	\$200.00
Additional for Aid and Attendance spouse	\$57.00	\$76.00	\$95.00	\$114.00

70% – 100% Without Children				
Dependent Status	70%	80%	90%	100%
Veteran Alone	\$1,716.28	\$1,995.01	\$2,241.91	\$3,737.85
Veteran with Spouse Only	\$1,861.28	\$2,161.01	\$2,428.91	\$3,946.25
Veteran with Spouse and One Parent	\$1,978.28	\$2,294.01	\$2,578.91	\$4,113.51
Veteran with Spouse and Two Parents	\$2,095.28	\$2,427.01	\$2,728.91	\$4,280.77
Veteran with One Parent	\$1,833.28	\$2,128.01	\$2,391.91	\$3,905.11
Veteran with Two Parents	\$1,950.28	\$2,261.01	\$2,541.91	\$4,072.37
Additional for Aid and Attendance spouse	\$134.00	\$153.00	\$172.00	\$191.14

70% – 100% With Children				
Dependent Status	70%	80%	90%	100%
Veteran with one Child (no spouse and no parents)	\$1,813.28	\$2,106.01	\$2,366.91	\$3,877.22
Veteran with Spouse and Child (no parents)	\$1,968.28	\$2,283.01	\$2,565.91	\$4,098.87
Veteran with Spouse, One Parent and One Child	\$2,085.28	\$2,416.01	\$2,715.91	\$4,266.13
Veteran with Spouse, Two Parents and Child	\$2,202.28	\$2,549.01	\$2,865.91	\$4,433.39
Veteran with One Parent and Child	\$1,930.28	\$2,239.01	\$2,516.91	\$4,044.48
Veteran with Two Parents and Child	\$2,047.28	\$2,372.01	\$2,666.91	\$4,211.74
Add for Each Additional Child Under Age 18	\$72.00	\$82.00	\$93.00	\$103.55
Each Additional Schoolchild Over Age 18	\$234.00	\$267.00	\$301.00	\$334.49
Additional for Aid and Attendance spouse	\$134.00	\$153.00	\$172.00	\$191.14

Note: The above rates are required by law to match the percentage of cost-of-living adjustments made to Social Security benefits. These adjustments help to make sure that the purchasing power of your benefits keeps up with inflation.

Emergency Room Transportation and Visits

Veterans enrolled in the VA Health Care System do not need to check with the VA before calling for an ambulance or going to an emergency department. During a medical emergency, the VA encourages all Veterans to seek immediate medical attention without delay. It is, however, important to promptly notify the VA within 72 hours of presenting to the emergency room. Phone # 844-724-7842

The following link has all the information for community care during an emergency.

https://www.va.gov/COMMUNITYCARE/providers/info EmergencyCare.asp

The person contacting VA should be prepared to supply the information shown in the table below. If the caller is unable to supply all information, VA will engage with the appropriate parties to attempt to collect the information.

Name	National Provider Identifier (NPI)
Gender	Name
Social Security Number	Address
Date of Birth	Point of Contact (POC) Name
Veteran Address	POC Phone #
Date Presenting to Facility	POC Fax #
Date of Discharge	POC Email
Admitted? (Yes/No)	Note: The POC will receive VA
Chief Complaint/Admission DX and/or Discharge DX	authorization decision information
Originating Location (address where the emergency event occurred)	
Mode of Arrival	
Other Health Insurance	

UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT (USERRA) RIGHTS AS AN EMPLOYEE

Service members who are in the civilian workforce fall into one of the following employment categories:

- 1. Seeking civilian employment
- 2. Actively engaged in civilian employment
- 3. Preparing for military deployment
- 4. Away on military deployment
- 5. Returning from military deployment

As employees move among these categories, different parts of USERRA may apply.

1. Seeking civilian employment

When seeking employment, an applicant may not be discriminated against based on past, present, or future uniformed service.

Examples of discrimination include:

- A jobseeker not being considered for a job because he may have a military obligation on the day his employer wants him to start work.
- A candidate not being considered for a job because some of her Reserve duties conflict with the company's normal working hours.
- A jobseeker not being considered for a job because he may be required to perform extended periods of military service with the National Guard or Reserves (i.e., a deployment overseas).

USERRA does not automatically entitle service members to a civilian position. Employers are allowed to reject a service member's job application as long as the decision is not influenced by the job-seeker's military service.

2. Actively engaged in civilian employment

USERRA protects members of the uniformed services during employment. Employers cannot take military service into account when they fire, discipline, promote, or award benefits to employees. In addition, employees may not be retaliated against for exercising their USERRA rights, for filing a complaint under USERRA, or for assisting

others in exercising their USERRA rights. For instance, if an employee believes his USERRA rights have been violated and files a complaint, the employer may not respond by firing, demoting, or otherwise retaliating against him.

Examples of discrimination include:

- An employee not being promoted because she may be absent in the future due to military service.
- An employee not being awarded an employer-wide raise or bonus because he was away on military duty for any or all of the applicable rating period.
- An employee being disciplined because he had to perform military duty during working hours.

3. Preparing for military deployment

Before starting her military service, an employee must notify her employer verbally or in writing if the service conflicts with work. While it is often easier to give notice well in advance, there is no specific time limit required. If the period of service is more than 30 days, the employee may be required to provide copies of military orders after the period of military duty ends if she wishes to resume working, unless doing so is impossible or impracticable. The employee may also be required to provide orders after a period of military duty ends if she requested to use any type of paid leave while away on military duty.

4. Away on military deployment

USERRA provides a number of protections for employees who are absent from civilian work due to voluntary or involuntary uniformed service. The goal is to treat the absent employee the same as if he had never left for military duty. During these absences, the employee is deemed to be on a leave of absence or furlough, although he may use paid leave if desired. The employee must be given the same benefits that are generally provided to a non-military employee who goes on a furlough or leave of absence.

Uniformed service absences include:

- Active duty
- Active duty for training
- Active duty for special work
- Weekend or weekday drill

- Funeral honors
- Fitness for duty or other required examination

5. Returning from military deployment

USERRA entitles most returning service members to reemployment after a period of service. Provided a service member meets the criteria set forth above, he or she must simply request reemployment or report back to work in a timely manner. The timeframe depends on how long the service member has been absent:

- For absences of 1-30 days, the service member is allowed time to travel home, plus 8 hours of rest, and must then report to work on the next working day.
- For absences of 31-180 days, the service member has 14 days to contact the employer and request reemployment.
- For absences of more than 180 days, the service member has 90 days to contact the employer and request reemployment.
- Extra time is allowed if the service member is recovering from an injury suffered during military service.

Once a request for reemployment is made, the service member must be reemployed promptly (if federally employed, he must be reemployed no later than 30 days after his request). If a service member does not make a timely request for reemployment, she is still entitled to prompt reemployment, but may be subject to discipline by her employer in the same manner as other employees with unauthorized absences.

An employee may perform up to five years total of military service and still be fully entitled to reemployment with the same employer. This is a cumulative total and starts over every time the employee switches employers. For example, if a member of the National Guard has separate deployments lasting six months, one year, and three years with one employer (for a total of 4 ½ years with that employer), and then changes jobs and is deployed for an additional two years, she is entitled to reemployment each time she returns. In addition, there are many exceptions to this five-year limit that exempt certain types of service from counting toward the five-year total. These exceptions are found in 38 U.S.C. Sec. 4312(c).

In addition to exceeding the five-year limit, there are a few other instances in which service members are not entitled to reemployment:

• If they receive an unfavorable discharge from the military, such as a discharge for bad conduct.

- If their original job (before deployment) was temporary, with no reasonable expectation that it would continue indefinitely or for a significant period. For example, a service member who spends a day painting a fence for a homeimprovement contractor would not be entitled to reemployment.
- If a change in the employer's circumstances makes reemployment impossible or unreasonable. For instance, if a service member returns from service to find that her former employer is going bankrupt and has laid off 90 percent of its employees, she may not be entitled to a job there. (However, if she worked for the federal government, she may be entitled to a job in another agency with assistance from the Office of Personnel Management.)
- If an injury suffered by the employee would create an "undue hardship" on the employer, meaning that accommodating the employee would be unreasonable or impossible for the employer. (If she worked for the federal government, she may be entitled to a job in another agency with assistance from the Office of Personnel Management.)

Once a service member is reemployed, USERRA provides guidelines on what position she is entitled to. Generally, the employee must be given the position she would have held had she remained continuously employed. (This is often referred to as the "escalator principle.") This may result in a promotion or other advancement. If an employer thinks that a service member is not qualified to perform this job, the employer must provide training or other experience to boost the employee's skills to the required level. If the employee cannot be trained through reasonable efforts, she is still entitled to her former position.

In some cases, where the employee was absent for more than 90 days due to military service, the employer may choose to reassign the employee, but it must be to a job of similar seniority, status, and pay as the employee's former position.

Returning service members are also entitled to receive benefits and seniority as though they had remained continuously employed. For instance, if an employee works at a company for two years and then completes one year of military service before returning, her employer must treat her as though she had worked continuously for three years when calculating the following benefits:

- Paid leave (although no leave is accrued while the employee is absent)
- Salary
- Credit toward completing probationary periods
- Eligibility for promotions
- Anything else that is tied to the employee's longevity at the workplace

In addition, returning service members have added job security. If they were absent for 31-180 days, they are protected against being terminated without cause for six months. If they were absent for more than 180 days, they are protected against being terminated without cause for one year. However, all returning service members can be terminated for cause at any time. USERRA does not protect service members if, for instance, they improperly miss work for reasons not related to their military service.

YOUR USERRA RIGHTS AS AN EMPLOYER

USERRA includes guidelines for the employers of service members, such as the following:

- Employers cannot discriminate, but they are generally not required to give preferential treatment to service members.
- When an employee who works for the federal government is due to miss work, the
 employer may contact his/her military commander to explain the difficulties caused by
 the employee's military service. The employer may request changes to make the
 employee's service less burdensome. However, the military is not required to agree to
 these changes.
- If a returning service member does not request reemployment in a timely manner, the
 employee may be disciplined. This discipline must be consistent with the way the
 employer normally disciplines other workers who are absent without leave or
 authorization for a similar period of time. Employers may not have to reemploy service
 members if:
 - 1. Changes in the employer's circumstances make reemployment impossible or unreasonable (e.g., the employer is going out of business).
 - 2. The original employment was temporary, with no reasonable expectation that it would continue indefinitely or for a significant period (e.g., a housing contractor hiring a carpenter just for one specific job).
 - 3. The service member sustained an injury that would create an "undue hardship" on the employer if he were reemployed. Employers must make reasonable efforts to accommodate injured service members, but if such accommodations are impossible, unreasonable, or use a prohibitive amount of resources, reemployment may not be required (federal employers must refer such cases to the Office of Personnel Management to provide placement assistance).
 - 4. The service member received an unfavorable discharge (this is rare).

5. The service member exceeded the five-year limit as defined in §38 U.S.C. Sec. 4312(c). NOTE: There are many exceptions to the general five-year rule, where certain types of service will not count toward the five-year total. The exceptions are listed in subsections 1 through 4 of §38 U.S.C. Sec. 4312(c).

Important Notice for Employers:

The Veterans Benefits Improvement Act of 2004, Public Law 108-454 (Dec. 10, 2004) requires employers to provide notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations of employees and employers under USERRA. To assist employers in complying with this requirement, the U.S. Department of Labor developed a USERRA informational poster to be posted at workplaces. This booklet is not intended to fulfill the requirements of the Veterans Benefits Improvement Act of 2004, Public Law 108-454 (Dec. 10, 2004)

DEPLOYMENT CHECKLIST

For service members and their partners, spouses, and loved ones: use the following checklists before deployment to ensure you have completed paperwork needed during or after you/your service member deploys. There are separate checklists for legal matters, family matters, personal property, financial matters, as well as a family care plan:

IBEW Local #5 Checklist

Call the benefits office at: 412-432-1130. Give them your e-mail address in case they have questions for you while you are gone and need to get hold of
you. Inform them of the dates on your orders.
Call the JATC if you are an apprentice at: 412-432-1145 and provide them
with a set of your orders, if required, and your e-mail address in case the
instructors and your fellow Apprentices want to get hold of you or send you
"CARE" packages.
Inform your employer that you are being activated and provide them with a
copy of your orders if required.
Call the Local #5 office at: 412-432-1400, option #3, and ask for Courtney
Steingraber to inform them that you are being activated and to request a
Military Withdrawal Card.

Legal Matters Checklist

Take your spouse and older children to the military ID card center to get an active-duty dependent ID card. Bring a copy of your orders with you. This will update your family in DEERS to enable them to get Tri-Care military health insurance. Failure to do this will leave your family without health insurance.

Create a Power of Attorney (POA). Contact your base legal office for information
on types of POAs and advice on which one you should use.
Create and/or update your will. You can use the Member Assistance Program at:
www.lifesolutionsforyou.com Organization Code ibew5
Consider establishing a joint bank account with your spouse so that bills can be
easily paid.
Review your current life insurance coverage.
Confirm your DD93 (Record of Emergency Data) and SGLV Form 8286 (Service
members' Group Life Insurance Election and Certificate) correct and update if
necessary.
If you are currently renting your home and need to cancel your lease, notify your
property management company of your deployment. Understand your rights
under the Service Members Civil Relief Act, here: www.jag.navy.mil.

Legal Documents Checklist

Keeı	copies	of the	following	documents	(if ar	pplicable)	togethe	r in a	secure	place
	o copico	0		a o carricito	/ ∽r	, p :: • • • • • • •	יייי	~	500010	P. G. C.

	Wills (for both service member and spouse)
	Power of Attorney (POA)
	Insurance policies (including life, health, home, and vehicle)
	Tax records
	Court orders (e.g., child support and custody documents or divorce paperwork)
	Social Security cards
	Birth certificates
	Marriage license
	Passport
	Visas and citizenship/naturalization paperwork
П	Vehicle titles registrations and inspections

	Copy of your most recent LES Family Matters Checklist
	Ensure ID cards are current and will not expire during deployment.
	Confirm all family members have all necessary TRICARE and Metlife (dental)
	information.
	Look into international calling plans.
	Set up a Zoom account at https://zoom.us/
	Create a list of important phone numbers and email addresses for both the service
	member and family. Personal Property Checklist (if applicable)
	Notify your homeowners insurance if your home will be vacant during deployment.
	Notify your renters insurance if you are storing your belongings in a storage
	facility.
	Make sure you have the appropriate household goods/personal property
	insurance.
	Know the location of your car title.
	Have an up-to-date vehicle registration and proof of registration.
	Know when your vehicle will need its next inspection.
	Make sure the vehicle is in good working order.
	If you own firearms, make sure they are registered with the appropriate authority
	and that your spouse/family member is trained to operate them.
Einancia	al Matters Checklist
rillalicie	al Matters Checklist
	Notify your credit card companies that you will be deployed.
	Make sure your family will have money available to them on a continuous basis.
	If you have a safe deposit box, make sure a family member has a key.
	Create a record of accounts with account information and bill due dates—store in a
	secure place.
	Set up automatic payments for bills (if desired) and make sure the credit cards you
	are using will not expire during deployment.
	Create a list of any computer or banking passwords—store in a secure place.
	Make sure you know where to go if you need financial assistance (e.g., Family
	Service Center, Command Ombudsman, Personnel Support Detachment (PSD), or
	Navy Marine Corps Relief Society).
	Understand the status of your finances (including debts, income, etc.).

Family Care Plan Checklist

Use the following checklist to develop your family care plan if you are a single parent or in the event that both parents and caregivers for minor children will deploy:

Assign a guardian for your family in a special Power of Attorney (POA) and confirm the guardian understands his or her responsibilities.
Obtain ID and commissary cards. To ensure military health coverage for you and your children, register all dependent family members in Defense Enrollment Eligibility Reporting System (DEERS), and check to make sure all ID cards have not expired.
Make sure Service members Group Life Insurance (SGLI) is correct.
Arrange for housing, food, transportation, and emergency needs.
Inform caretakers of your financial matters.
Arrange for guardian to have access to necessary funds.
Arrange for childcare, education, and medical care.
Arrange necessary travel and escort to transfer family members to the new guardian.
Discuss these plans with your children.
If you have a membership in the American Legion or VFW be sure to let them know that you are being activated as they have Officers who will make sure your family is taken care of and send "CARE" packages to you and your unit
Have a list of trusted people that your family can call for house repairs and emergency repair issues.
Make sure to let your religious leaders know that you have been activated and give them your e-mail address so your fellow parishioners can help with your family, pray for your wellbeing, and maybe send a package or two.

Local #5 Jurisdiction County Directors of Veterans Affairs Contact Information

County Directors of Veterans Affairs							
County	County Websites	Director	Address	Work Phone	Fax	E-Mail	
Allegheny	County Website	Timothy Martin	4141 5th Ave., 3rd Floor Pittsburgh, PA 15213-3347	(412) 621-4357	(412) 621- 3622	timothy.martin@alleghenycounty.us	
Armstrong	County Website	Kathy Rashlich	450 E. Market St., Suite 107 Kittanning, PA 16201-1461	(724) 548-3441	(724) 548- 3732	karashlich@co.armstrong.pa.us vetaffairs@co.armstrong.pa.us	
Bedford	County Website	Gretchen Martin	200 S. Juliana St. Bedford, PA 15522-1767	(814) 623-4848	(814) 623- 7431	gmartin@bedfordcountypa.org	
Blair	County Website	Eric Kay	423 Allegheny St., Suite 112 Hollidaysburg, PA 16648-2022	(814) 693-3160	(814) 693- 3159	ekay@blairco.org	
Butler	County Website	Shawnee Young	124 W. Diamond St. Butler, PA 16003-1208	(724) 284-5352	(724) 284- 1006	syoung@co.butler.pa.us	
Cambria	County Website	Philip Rice	200 S. Center St. Ebensburg, PA 15931- 1947	(814) 472-1590	(814) 472- 1423	price@co.cambria.pa.us	
Cameron	County Website	Joe Williams	20 E. 5th St. Emporium, PA 15834	(814) 389-5972	(814) 486- 3176	dvawilliams@cameroncountypa.com	
Centre	County Website	Brian Querry	420 Holmes St., Suite 333 Bellefonte, PA 16823-1488	(814) 355-6812	(814) 548- 1144	bquerry@centrecountypa.gov	
Clarion	<u>County</u> <u>Website</u>	Rodney Sherman	330 Main St., Rm. 109 Clarion, PA 16214-1024	(814) 226-4000 ext. 2601	(814) 226- 4906	rsherman@co.clarion.pa.us ccva2@co.clarion.pa.us	
Clearfield	<u>County</u> <u>Website</u>	Betina Nicklas	212 East Locust St., Suite 104 Clearfield, PA 16830	(814) 765-4611	(814) 765- 8988	mdoran@clearfieldco.org	
Elk	County Website	Leslie Neal	300 Center St., P.O. Box 448 Ridgway, PA 15853-1007	(814) 776-5370	(814) 776- 5359	Ineal@countyofelkpa.com veterans@countyofelkpa.com	
Fayette	County Website	Brian Bensen	22 E. Main St. Uniontown, PA 15401	(724) 430-1241	(724) 430- 1427	bbensen@fayettepa.org	
Fulton	County Website	Dick Newman	116 W. Market St. McConnellsburg, PA 17233	(717) 485-6873	(717) 485- 9411	rnewman@co.fulton.pa.us	
Greene	County Website	Kathy Cipcic	93 East High St., Rm. B2 Waynesburg, PA 15370	(724) 852-5275	(724) 852- 5307	kcipcic@co.greene.pa.us	
Huntingdon	County Website	Brian Bassett	205 Penn St., Suite 2 Huntingdon, PA 16652-1457	(814) 643-1360	(814) 506- 9039	bbassett@huntingdoncounty.net	
Indiana	<u>County</u> <u>Website</u>	Al Lockard	Court House 825 Philadelphia St. Indiana, PA 15701-3934	(724) 465-3815	(724) 465- 3991	alockard@indianacountypa.gov	
Jefferson	County Website	Dave Reitz	155 Main St, 2d Fl. Brookville, PA 15825-1269	(814) 849-3618	(814) 849- 4084	dreitz@jeffersoncountypa.com	
McKean	County Website	Alvin Loveless	500 W. Main St. Smethport, PA 16749-1149	(814) 887-3241	(814) 887- 3101	adloveless@mckeancountypa.org	
Somerset	County Website	Ron Mash	300 N. Center Ave., Suite 380 Somerset, PA 15501-1497	(814) 445-1551	(814) 445- 1446	mashr@co.somerset.pa.us	

	<u>County</u>	Harry	1 Dale Ave.		(814) 437-	
Venango	<u>Website</u>	Whittemore	Franklin, PA 16323-2301	(814) 432-9780	2338	hwhittemore@co.venango.pa.us
	County		95 W. Beau St. 3rd Fl. Washington, PA		(724) 228-	
Washington	Website	Angie Mattes	15301-4432	(724) 228-6865	6872	mattesan@co.washington.pa.us
	County	Matthew	2 N. Main St., Suite 502		(724) 830-	
Westmoreland	Website	Zamosky	Greensburg, PA 15601-2405	(724) 830-3530	3010	mzamosky@co.westmoreland.pa.us